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Discussion and Guidance
Introduction
During the recent WG mtg in Madrid, there was considerable interest in the scope of the RAN5 ToR as in whether to expand the scope or not. This was triggered by an input LS from GCF Steering Group (R5-104166) because there is interest in GCF adopting, for instance ‘end to end data performance measures’. The associated request was as follows: 
‘GCF would greatly appreciate if 3GPP RAN 5 could identify whether it is already within their scope to create such a test procedure (without a corresponding core requirement), or whether their scope could be modified to allow such work to go ahead, subject to the normal Work Item process and suitable input contributions being received’.

A response LS was approved in (R5-104673) which has been copied to the RAN Plenary (RP-100713) but for convenience the short answers were:

· The task of creating end to end data performance procedures is outside RAN5’s terms of reference (ToR) as they are written today.

· It is possible to modify the scope of the ToR in accordance with 3GPP procedures that would allow RAN5 to undertake the sort of work subject to the usual work item process. Any such modification would have to be considered and approved at TSG level.

At RAN5#48, there were extensive and interesting discussions on this subject. In summary it was agreed to make the case whether or not to modify the RAN5 ToR to the next RAN Plenary - RP#49 (14 – 17 Sep 10); it is likely that this will include examples on how the ToR could be changed, but as indicated above, it is for the RAN TSG to make the final decision.
WG Discussion
With the questions from the LS answered, the next issue for RAN5 was whether it wanted to expand the scope to give it the possibility of providing additional services. Factors considered were:

· Are there benefits for the industry?

· What safe guards are in place to ensure that RAN5 is not overburdened?

· Does RAN5 have the capacity or relevant skills to undertake such work?

· Does RAN5 have the time to undertake such work?

Are there benefits for the industry? It was argued that there are benefits to the industry, as a whole, if a body undertakes some of this work. RAN5 has experience, is well organised and is part of a well respected SDO. Operators, in particular could benefit from using industry accepted methods rather than either developing their own or paying a supplier to do them. The outcome of such tests may, in turn, highlight areas of concern with the existing core standards which would lead to improvement. 

What safe guards are in place to ensure that RAN5 is not overburdened? Every work item proposal is based on its merits. New work needs commitment by the proposers and a willingness to do the work, outside meetings if necessary. Since RAN5 reviews all proposals before each Plenary, if a proposal does not convince the WG, then it won’t be accepted – and stopped at that stage. 
Does RAN5 have the capacity or relevant skills to undertake such work? As with the current system, resources have to be found to fulfil the requirements set out in any proposal. Part of the acceptance process is to confirm that the proponents (i.e. supporters) commit to make the relevant resources available to do the work so the situation is no different. 

Does RAN5 have the time to undertake such work? Whether RAN5 has the time is determined by the time management skills of the leadership team. Experience has shown that RAN5 manages its time well but if a task is considered too time consuming for the regular RAN5 week, then alternatives such as limited ad hocs, organised offline calls etc. can be employed to lessen the impact of such work. Alternatively it may be that a proposal is not agreed due to time constraints.

Representative options to adapt the RAN5 ToR
In order to give the Plenary some idea of how the ToR could be changed, included in this paper are some representative suggestions from RAN5 delegates. It is emphasised that none of the suggestions represent an agreed RAN5 position but most of them have been made available to RAN5 for comment and, thus far, no outright public outpouring of despair has been heard.

The three suggestions so far that relate to the last 2 sentences of the ToR as they appear on the 3GPP web site (changes in red): 

· From company A: Notwithstanding the ToR of the other RAN working groups, RAN5 may propose UE conformance tests <add or other test procedures>, to reflect emerging requirements within the test industry. Any such proposal shall be processed through the relevant RAN working group(s) <add as, and if necessary>.

· From company B: Notwithstanding the ToR of the other RAN working groups, RAN5 may propose UE conformance tests < add or UE performance measurement procedures associated with 3GPP radio access technology and 3GPP test conditions> to reflect emerging requirements within the test industry. <last sentence unchanged>. 

· From company A (reflecting on company B’s proposal): Notwithstanding the ToR of the other RAN working groups, RAN5 may propose UE conformance tests <add or UE performance measurement procedures associated with 3GPP radio access technologies > to reflect emerging requirements within the test industry. <last sentence unchanged>. 
· From company B (enhanced suggestion): Notwithstanding the ToR of the other RAN working groups, RAN5 may propose UE conformance tests to reflect emerging requirements within the test industry. <add In addition RAN5 may propose UE performance measurement procedures associated with 3GPP radio access technologies and based on 3GPP accepted test conditions to reflect common testing requirements within the industry.> Any such proposal should be processed through the relevant RAN working group(s) , <add as required.>
It is possible that other/similar suggestions maybe sent as company contributions directly to the Plenary for consideration.

Summary
To summarise the situation, RAN5 has been asked whether its scope can be updated to allow it to undertake a wider scope of tasks that could include, for instance, end to end data performance measures. The topic has been discussed at length in RAN5 and this paper attempts to record the key points raised at the recent meeting; it also includes some representative thoughts of how the ToR could be updated.

RAN Plenary Action

Ultimately it is for the RAN Plenary to approve the ToR for its working groups and RAN5 now asks for action and guidance, which may or may not result in a change to the ToR, based on whatever additional inputs are received and discussions that take place at the Plenary.
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